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. GOWANS, J. ¢ The applicant, Leith McDonald Ratten, is seeking

RWKG,

leave to appeal against his conviction for murder. He was
tried at shepparton before Hig Honor The Chief Justice and a
jury in a hearing which took place between August 10 and
Auguat 20 1970, The person killed was his wife, Beverley
Joan Ratten. The death ook place on May 7 1970 at thelyr
home at 59 Mitchell Street, Echuca, Her death was caused
by the discharge of a shotgun, which was at the time in the
hands of the applicant. The £atal incident took place in
the kitchen of the house about 1.15 o'clock im the afternoon.
No-one else was pregent excapt the applicant and the deceased.

The Crown caae wasa that the circumstantial evidence showed

"that the applicant had deliberately fired the gun at his wife

with intent ¢o kill her, The defence case was that the
gun had accldentally discharged in the course of its barrel
being cleaned by the applicant,

In order to understand the background of the events
leading up to the fatality, and to appreciate the settinyg of
the grounds of appeal, some statement of gvents is necessary,

In 1964 the applicant and his wife and their young
family were living in Echuca. They became friendly wich
another married couple, Mr., and Mra. Kemp, who also lived in
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the town and had a young family. The two husbands were
both interested in shooting, Later the Kemps moved ¢o
Barmmah, out of Echuca, but the friendship continued. In
March or April 1969 an adulterous connection commenced betwean
the applicant and Mrs. Kemp, and it continued until the
fatality. It reached a stage where the two parties were
discussing leaving their respective spouses and golng off o
live together. It had expressed itself in acts of
intercourse up to the day before the shooting, It is
unnecegsary for immediate purposes to go further inte the
conduct associated with this matter.
The applicant had for many years been interested
in and was the owner of game wWeapons. About 1967 he acquircd
the shotgun involved in the fatality, it was an old double-
barrelled side by side shotgun. In March or April 1970,
as a result of a discussion between Kemp and the applicant,
this gun was taken by Kemp to a gungmith in Shepparton either
for sale or repair (it is not clear which) and in late March
or early April it was returned to the applicant. It had
not been repaired, It had some looseness in the locking
mechaniam, and the resistance of the safety catch could be
overcome by putting sufficient pressure on the trigger,
When 1t was returned, the gun was in an unlcaded condition.
The applicant kept it thereafter on a bench in his garage at
his home. The garage alspo provided shelter for a canoe
used in the applicant's shooting expeditions. Loose
cartridges for ready use were kept in a plastic containzr on
the floor of the canos. From the time the gun c¢ame back
from the gunsmith until the day of the fatality, the gun was
not removed from the bench in the garage. There was no
explanation from the applicant or anyon2 else as to how it
came to be lcaded, At some time on the fatal day the gum
was brought into the kitchen of the house‘by the applicant.
At the time of its discharxrge it was loaded in both barrels.
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ALL2r the fatality the'cartridge in ¢the right hand bagrel

was stiil there and wag found ¢o have wisfired. The
cartridce in the left hand barrzl had been fired and had causecd
the wound which killed the wife, Consideration of the
evidence bzaring on the cause of the gun discharging and cn

the position and attitude of the wife at the time may bz pui
aslde fox the time being and attention directed to cextain
events at or about the timz of the shooting, walch featured i
the evidence, The times at which {these happenings took placc
are of lmportance.

At 1.9 p.m. a telophone connection was made from
Melbourne o the house in Echuca at the instance of the
applicant®s father. During the 2.9 minutes that that calx
between the father and the applicant lasted the f£ather heard
tne wife's voice in the background. Everything appearcd o
him ¢o be normal, Shortly afterwards a telephone oparatosr
ia the Echuca Telephone Exchango, Janet Lucille Plowers, todk
a call from the housge., She says the time was then aboug
1,15 paim, Her account was that a woman's voilice, at £irsct
calm and then punctuatad by sobs and becoming hysterical, and
finishing in s yell, sald to her - "Get me the police, please™,
and later added = Y59 Mitchell Street’. Ag the telenhonloy
connected with the police station the caller_hung up. Thig
call to the exchange was later claimed by the appiicant to
have been made by him, but his version was that the shooting
had then happened, and that it was an ambulance hao had agked
the exchange to get, not the police, According to Miss
Flowers, as the caller had hung up the police had answered tho
"phone, and after referring o her superior officzr, she hrad
then told ¢the police they were wvanted at 59 Mitchell Strect.
She noticed that the time given by the exchange clochk was thoes.
1,20 p.m, As a result of the megsage to tho policz gtatciou,

which wag confirmed by another witness to have taken place
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about 1.20 p.m., and as the reauvlt of the immediate degpatch
of a police van to the house, a telephone call was made £rom
the police station to the number frxrom which the call to the
exchange had come, According to Miss Plowers she saw Chis
call being made through the exchange mechanism about tvwo
minutes after her own call to the police. Constable
Bickerton, who made this last call to ¢he houge number,
described how a volce answered the ¢all, saying, immediately.,
vefore any enquizry could be madzs -~ “Help me, help me, for
Godfs sake come quiclk, for God‘s sake come quick,” In answer
to an enquiry from the police, the addregs was given ag 59
Mitchall Street. The voice was describsasd by Constable
Bickerton as urgent,. hysterical, very quickly spoken and with
a high inflexicn. The applicant has said it was hig wvoico,
and no challenge was made at the trial to the contention that
it was he who angwered the ‘phone. within three mimites og
so fxom the recelpt of the first call at the police station
the police had covered the journey of a mile or a mile and a
half and had arrived at the house, and were there directed by
the applicant to the kicchen, where the wife was lying dead on
the fleor, The gun was on the floor of a amall den
adjoining the kitchen. In angwer t©o a question as o what
had happened, the applicant said that the gun had gone off
when he had had i¢, and he had killed hig wife, He explailned
that he had been cleaning the gun im the kitchen, taking the
ruat off i<, iI¢ appeared that his explanation was t¢hat

he had been standing holding the gun in his right hand

{being left handed) was rubbing the barrel with a steel wool
pad in his left hand. Hig wife was standing at a shelf.
Latexr that night abcut 7 p.m., in anawer to a police enquiry
as ¢o who had rung t¢he police station, the applicaat claimed
that he had, and sald that he had rung the Exchangs but had
askzd the operator to send an ambulance., Later again thag
nRight in an interview with the police, vhich was rocordced,
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he repeated that asscrtion, and gald that he had not at any
time azgked for the police, and was certain he had asked for
the ambulance. He sald fuxther that for an hour beforae

the shooting, and at the tim2 of its happening, and for a
quarter of an hour thereafter, there was no woman in the houwesa
other than his wife,

This narrative does rot include many incidental
matters, but will guflice for immediate purposes.

The grounds of appeal are concerned with thres
gubjevt matters. They may convenicently be congidered im &
different order from that in vhich they ware set out in the
notice of application and im which they were argued. ine
firat which can bz taken corncerns an eiaquiry from the jury
agfiter they had retired ¢o consider their wverdicet with respegt
to evidence of when the cance haed lapt been used, and the
answer given by the learned trial judge. This is ground 5.
The second concernsg the evidence given by the telephone
oparator, Miss Floweks, as to the call fram he housge asiiing
for the police. Zts acmissibllity as evidence is ¢ho
subject of ground 4, and the directlong of the judge in
relation thereto the gsubject of grounds 4{a) and 6. THe
third subject matter is the evidence ap a whola, Its alleg:?.
insufficiency to justify the verdict is dealt with in ground:
i, 2 and 3,

The first of these subject matters can be dealt wila
gnorely. After the jury had been out of court deliberatin~
for four hours, they returnzd at £4.53 p.m,, and, througn
thelr foreman, said that they “wanted o know if there wasg
any evidence given ag o wvhen the lagt timz the canoe wag uvach
prior to these proceedings.® Prompted by the prosecutsr-
the loarned judge read to them a passage £rom ¢the Cross-
examination of the applicant. What he sald appears f£rou

the transcript at page 57 of the charge.
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8,30 P-Me

8.32.

“Hig Honour: Yes, HMr. TForcian. Jugt at tho
beginning of Ix. Fowse's crogs-—eitamination it
took place. Mr. Howse: 'Witness, you told
us about the pracautions that you tool with
your gun to mgke sure that they were unloadcd
in the housa. pid you talke any spoeial
precauntions with your svpply of amunition
whilst it was on the house premises?! A,
‘Wo, T did not.’ 0. ‘And you have ¢old ug
ahout your daughtorp quite ofton acccapanying
you on shooting expeditions, and I guppose i¢
follows f£rcm that that thers were many times
vhen they say you putting cartridges in youw
gung?? Ao *Y¥eg.,’ Q. ‘How long had the
canoe been in the garage as it is shown in
photograph 10 of Bxnhibit "3% -~ look at the
phiotographg pleasa? Hovw long had it been
there sincae the last¢ time you used i¢?!

A, It hzd bean placed there on the Sunday
prior to the accident.® I gsald, "That is
the canoe?’ A, ‘Yes, Your Honor.' Next
questions 'If you look at photograph 11,

the cartridge belt and the contalner of
cartridges that we gee there, ¢they had been im
the gun gince the previocus Sunday, had cthay,
since the Sunday prior to the 7th May - ‘been
in the canoa, rather? As chown in phocograrh
i1? They had bk2en in that position sincae tho
previous Sunday, had they?' Ao '¥Yeg, I hadn’'2
touched them since last uwcing the cariridges.®
Iz that what you had in minQ?¥ My, Foremans
‘Yes, Your Honox?.®

The court then adjourncd Lor ¢the dinner breal: une! L

The jury were brougit im by the judge again agv

What then occurred appears in the transcript as
pagse 58 of the chargae.

"Hig Honcur: v, Forecman, you adlkod m2 &
guestion just bofore we adjournsd relating o
was there any evidance as to how long it was
since the canoz had becen lagt used, and I read
thogse questions and angwersg ©o you, It hag
been polnted out ¢o m2 since that there may
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be gome ambiguity in that question and t¢the
answer, so I had better read ié again to you.
The guestion wass 'How long had the canos
been in the garage as it ig shown in

photograph 10 of Exhibi¢ “A" = look at the
photographsg ., please? How leng had i¢ been
there since the last time you used ie?’

ANsvers: It had been placed there on the
Sunday prior to the accident.! Then I said,
“That is the cance?' A, ‘*Yes, Your Honour.®
Do you gee ¢he ambigquity in that - 'How long
had it been there?! that is the canoe, 'since
the last time you used it?° B, ‘It had bezen
placed there on the Sunday priox to the
aceident,’ That is a question for you to
interpret what that means, but it is opzn to
two meanings, that question, that is it may be
‘How long it had been in the garage since you
last uged it', and it does not necessarily mean
that it had bzen used on the Sunday. Or it
may mean it the other way. So 1t is a rather
amblquous question and answer. I t¢hought I had
better read that to you and explain it to you im
cagse you had not appreciated that.®

The jury then retired at 8.34, returning a minute

later to ask for an exhibit, "the lictle plastic containsye
that was in the boat," They were given i¢. The juery
continued their deliberations for a further unbroken period
of two hours, and then returned their verdict at 10,40 p.m.

No exceptlon was taken in respect of this matter.

The ground in which this incident is relied om is

as followas

5, That subsequent to retiring the jury
were misdirected in relation‘to a cquestion as
to 'when the canoe was lagt used®, and.
subsgequent correction was too late to be

effective.”

If ¢he original charge to the jury had contained a statsment

by the judge that the passage in the cross-examination of tho
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applicant contained evidence as o when the canoe had been
last used, it could at the most have amounted to a
misdirection of fact. But in substance the judge would
have be=n expressing an opinion as to what the evidence
amountedt to- To express such an opinion would have been
permissible so long as it was made clear that the jury were
not debarred from finding the facts for themselves. That vwes
made clear throughout the charge. The position can be no
more Ffavourable for the applicant because the interchange
occurred after the charge had been completed, and in respounse
to an enquiry by the jury during their deliberations. The only
real result of that circumstance is that if there were any
opinion by the judge involved in the reading of the evidence
in answer to the jury‘s question, it could only be taken as an
expression of an opinion of the mildest kind. The actual
reading of the evidence to the jury put them in a position o
interpret the evidence for themselves, and decide whether the
construction placed on it was correct or note. Thug, if no
review of that matter had ever been made by the judge, it
could, according to well established principles, have afforded
no ground for a new trial. But the later review of the
matter by the judge, pointing out the doubt about the
correctness of the earlier interpretation, owing to the
ambiguity lurking in the evidence, and emphasising that the
interpretation of the evidence was for the jury. makes the
objection wholly untenable, If that had never been done at
all it would not have provided a ground of appeal-. When i«
was in fact done, and done two hours before the verdict was
returned, the obisction becomes clearly groundless. Ground 2
therefore mast be rejected.,

The second subject matter concerns the evidence
given by the telephone operator, Janet Lucille Flowers. Tha
points taken with respect to this require a more precise
examination. They are the subject of grounds 4. 4{a; and &.
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These grounds read ags follous:

4. The evidence of one Janet wuclille Plowers
wag wrongly admitted, and in particular her
evidence of opinion to the effect that the volce
was that of a female,

4a. The learned trial judge failed to direct
the jury or ¢o direct the jury adeaquately in
relation to the statement claimed to have bagn
heard by the witness Flowers and £alled to direct
the jury that the sald statement was not evidence
of the fact.®

6. That the learned ¢rial judge failed to
direct the jury or to adequately direct the jury
ag to the inherent dangers of identification
evidence ag such in relation ¢o the said wigness.”

No doubt if evidence of the witness had been confinad
to the facts that, at a specified time, a call had been
received at the exchange from the house and it had been
conneated to the police station, and on the call being
discontinued, a conversation had been had by her with the
police. without the gubstance of any of these conversations
being set out, or any statemnent being made as to the sex of
the caller, the evidence could not, and would not, have bean
the subject of objection. The evidence given in that way
would have been relevant and necessary to explaln how and whea
the police came to be notified and make their enquiries.

The matter that is objected to 1is the characterisation of the
evidence as that of a woman, and the account of the agubstance
of the utterance itself. It is however the foxmer aspact
of the evidence that is the more damaging to ¢he applicant's
case, for once it appeared t¢that it was the volce of a woman
that was heard on the call which led to the message to the
police, the intimation would have been conveyed that the wife
had made an appeal in some form or other for help or
protettion. Without‘identification of the caller as a
woman, the subject of the utterance itself might have boen
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given without any harm to the applicant. except perhapg thas
it did not tally with the account he later gave of a call %o
the exchange by himself.

But the evidence, whether in respect to the
classification of the voice alone, or in relation both o
that and to what was said,; tended to prove that there had
been an appeal for help and that it was an appeal made by the
wife, Thie in turn tended to prove that it was against
her husband, the applicant, that she needed help, The evidence
necessarily involved at the same time a denial of the
applicant‘s story to the police that it was he who had been
seeking help, and that he had made the call for that purpose.

The relevance of this material can hardly be denied-.
That was recognised by the learned trial judge when he was
called upon to rule as to its admissibility at the opening ol
the trial. He admitted it as tending to rebut the account
given by the accuzed to the interrogating police as to how ho
came to make a ‘phone call for the purpose of sunmoning
assis?ance for hig wife after the shooting happened, conduet
on hisz part inconsigtent with criminal conduct of the kind
charged against him by the Crown, The learned judge
admitted the evidence also as tending to ghow the relatiens
existing between the applicant and his wife at the relevant
time, He later directed the jury that these were the twe
ways in which they could use the material.

A third basis on vwhich the evidence wag relevant
was relled upon by the learned Prosecutor in his submission
and accepted by the learned judge, That was that it¢s
subject matter was part and parcel of an inter-connected
series of events which océurred over an exceedingly shore
period of time on the day in question, and that to excludge
this portion of the ewvidence would tend to make the series
of events unintelligible in the eyes of a jury. so that it
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was relevant on the basis of the dacision in Q Leary ¥.
The King, 73 C.L.R. 366, Tois case was one concerned
with an igsue as to the identification of t¢he assailant whu
had caused the death of the victim. In such a case thd
manner in which the evidence could be used foxr the purposcc
of identification would require a directlon on the point i@
the charge <o the jury. Thug a decision that the evidonco
was relevant and admigsible in this case on the basig thun
suggested would, if that were the only basis upon which it
was admissible, shift the inquiry from ¢he admissibility of
the evidence to the appropriate nature of the direction o
the jury. No direction associated with such a basls for
admitiing the evidence was however 1in fact given to the jury
in the present case, and it may be presumed that the learned
trial judge came ¢o the conclusion that the only proper uses
o which the material could be put were the two uses winlch
he in fact directed the jury to conaider, it is thereform
not necessary to consider whether the evidence was relevant
when regarded in the light of what was suggested in this
third gubmigsion, if the evidence was relevant when regardet
from the other two aspects. Attention may therefore be
directed to them.

i1t was clear from what the applicant had told the
police that it was part of his case that after the shootlng
he had telephoned the exchange to have an ambulance despatched.
an act which, as has been said. 1s capable of baing regarded
as indicative of innocence. It was equally clear thae
evidence which tended to prove that it was not he vho
telephoned the exchange but his wife, and that the requeat
was not for an ambulance but for the policqq 50 that tho
inference was that the call took place before the shooting.
would controvert the defence case in that respect. BEvidonio
¢that it was a woman wiio rang and that the requegt was for tne
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police and not¢ the ambulance was therefore relevant.

No question of hearsay evidence would arise it
that were the only ground for the admisgsibility of the evifs -
The evidence would relate to “verbal acts® {cf. McGregor V.
Stokes, 1952 V.L,R. 347 at p. 350}. The facts baing provee
and the only facts being proved, would bz the gex of the pox.. .
who spoke, and what was the subject matter of what was sala-
A direction as to this use of the evidence would be required
but what direction would then be required may be looked a@
later.

It is necessary to deal first with another pointyg
a narrovar issue within this wider one first recuilres
consideration. Ic ig whether the fact that it was a woman
who made the call could be proved by the statement of the
hearer that it was a woman®s voice. It is objected that
this is opinion evidence which cannot be given by a witness,
at all events one who has not been qualified to express an
opinion.

It is true that where the subject matter of an
inquiry is such that inexperienced persons are unlikely 2
prove capable of forming a correct judgment upsn itc without
assistance from the opinions of witnesses possessing patulial
skill. the opinions of persong so qualified ars admissible.
and on the other hand, when the inquiry is into a subject
matter, the nature of which is not such as to require any
peculiar habits or study in order to qualify a man to
understand it, the opinions of witnegges cannot be received -
see notes to Carter v. Bocehm 1 Smith L.C. 13th Ed. page 561,
But that does not mean that witnesses may not describe what
they see or hear, or state their impressions, according o
ordinary human exparience, of what they see or hear. Nearly
all human observations of objects or happenings involve some
element of interpretation, opinion or inferance. BEven o oy

that a car seen was blue, or that a parson sesn wag @ man. o.
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chat a woman seen was old, involves some such element.

in each case there is a conclusion based on common human
experience, As ig pointed out by Professor Cross in a
section headed “Cases in which non-expert opinion is admissible®
contained in his book on Evidence, 2nd Ed. page 366 - "there
are numerous situations in which evidence of opinion is received
as a matter of necesgity:® and at page 365, “"typical

instances are provided by questions concerning age, speed,
weather, handwriting and identity in general.v

It is objected that perceptions of hearing stand
aparc. why this should be so it is impossible to discern,
Identification by voice is famillar evidence - gee R, ¥, Wrighg
No, 2 1968 V.,R. 174, It is also contended that any
clagsification of a voice hgard on a telephone stands spart.
But it is commoﬁplace to admit evidence of a telerhone
conversation after a voice has been identified ag that of a
particular persen.

The evidence, therafore, was admissibles and, aa
has been pointed out, it was relevant, to prove that the call
was f£rom a woman, and that what she said was what was set out
in that evidence and not what the applicant saild wag the case-

But if that were the only bagis on which the
evidence could be admitted, it would have been necessary o
warn the jury that the evidence should not be regarded as
tending to prove more than that, and that it should not be
regarded as tending to prove anything that was happenirg in
the house at the time of the eall., since the jury were
told the evidence could be used to show the relations between
the wife and the applicant in the house at the time, that is
to say that the evidence could be used ‘testimoniallyt, it
iz necessary to consider wvhether it was admissible on that

basis.
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Tnsofar as 1t tended to show the relations
existing batween the couple at the time 1t was clearly

relevant -~ Wilson v, The Oueen, 44 A.L.J.R. pags 221,

The infexrence open to be drawn from the words uttered was
that the speaker was in need of protection Lrom the polics,
because she was in a state of apprehension in consequence of
aggression from some other person, presumably the other
person in the hcuse.

The guestion that then arises 1s not so much ag €o
the relevancy of the evidence 8o regarded, as tw the medlum
of its proof. It iz sought to prove the state of the
relations between the couple, not by .the evidence of witnessean
who were present at quaxrels, as was the case in Wilson v,
The Queen {supra), or by the confessional statements of the

accused himself, as was the case in K, ¥. Taingopolous 1364

V.Lo.Ros 676, but by the statement of the other party ag related
by a third, This 1s hearsay evidencs, Notwithstanding
that, 1t may be admitted 1f it is part of the res gestac.

The statement of ome person involved in a relevant event,
which is contemporanecus with and directly concerns thatg
event, may be related by another person who hears it, ™
principle is an exception to the hearsay rule - Teper v, The
Queen {1952) A.C. 480. The statement of the wife that she
was in a state of apprehension from her husband®s aggresslive
conduct could be given in evidence by another who heard it,
if the statement was made in a spontaneous utterance whieh
was part of what was happening in the house so immediately
before the shooting as to be part of that happening. The
statement related by the telephone operator was clearly
capable of being construed by the jury as a spontaneous call
for help by the wife. If it took place in the manner

and at the time related by the witness, it must have taksn
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place within a few minutes before the wife was shot. In
those circumstances it is clearly capable of belng related
#o the actions of the applicant in connection with the
shooting.

It was objected that the factor of contemporanally
was not present. But in all the statements o% the rula
there are included not only declarations made at the time of
the act being done, and immedilately afterwards, but also
declarations made immediately before. Furthermore, 1¢ wap
contended that the implications of the utterance had in come
way ©o be curtailed so as to exclude any reflection on what
the applicant might have been doing, But there can ba no
such artificial limitation imposed on the significance of
the statement. I£ it can falrly import apprehension of
the applicant’s conduet, it is for the jury to deciée what i
involves, In the leading case of R, ¥. Beddingfield (1879]

14 Cox C.Co 341, the circumstances were that the accused man
and the deceased woman were in a room together when both had
their throats cut, The issue was whether the accused cut
the threoat of the woman and ¢hen his own, or whether the
deceased woman cut his throat and then her own. The evidence
was that the woman came cut of the house with her throat cut
and was heard to say, “See what Beddingfileld has done to me,”
The statement was excluded as evidence by Cockburn C.J. as
something stated after it was all over, However rigozous
may have been the application in that case of the condition
that the statement musat be contemporaneous, it is, however,
to be nofed that it was remarked by the learned judge in that
same case that if the voman's statement had been made at the
timz the act was being doné, for example, if she had been
heard to say something such as, “Don‘t, Harry," that would
have bean admigsible, There 18 no significant difference
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to be discerned betwezn an expostulation of that kind and
a call for help, whether broadeast generally or made ciral
the telephone.,

The illust¢ration given in Beddiangfxrold's call (i
that the statement may b2 that of th2 wictin and need ot ™
that of the doer of the act, and this i1z supported by a0
dictum of Holt C.J. in Thompason v. Trevanion (1693} skia, ~U.
gald to be the first casz £rom vhich the ruvle stems. e
also supported by R, V. Pogher (1834) 6 C, & P, 325, wrax ¢
a charge of manslaughter by running down the statement of %
decezged ag to what had knocked him down was neld admicsibiz
as identifying the kingd of wvehicle involvced.

Tt is further objected that the statement caimoli ko
admitted as evidence of the fact it relates. This point
has been the subject of much controversy im the discusszlion.
of textbook writers, and they have the support of a diewim Gl

Lozd Atkinson in The King v. Christie, 1914 a.C. 545 at p. &>

But as Starke, J. pointed out in Adelaide Chemical Fertlil e

Company V. Carlvle, 64 C.L.R. 514 at p. 526 “unlesgs thig bz
true® {i.e, that the declaration may be uged to prove wnat 10
imports and to supply new and oth2zxwise unproved ox
insufficiently proved elements in the res gestae) “the
celebrated controversy in comnnection with Beddingfield's carc.
and the decision of R, v. Foster {supra), R, v. Lunay {185%)
6 Cox C.C. 477, and R. v, Goddard, (1882) 15 Cox C.C., (¢ geu

almost meaningless,” He accordingly treated the
declaration of the injured man in the instant case as Gvido.: -
of the facts 1t related. Purthermore, 1£, as ig sald by

the Privy Council in Teper ¥, R. {supraj, the res gestes

principle is an exception to the hearsay rule {and thic e~
from the judgment is repeated by the Privy Council in Snapik -«

The Queen, 1964 A.C. 964) 1t mugt permit of the proof of farl-
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wvhich the hearsay rule would exclude, A recent Ausiralicn
decision in support of this proposition is that of ths Full

Court of Queensland in R, Vv, MciIntosh, 1%68 Q.R. 510,

(See also the discussion in Crogs on Evidenca, Znd Edli'on,

PPo 459 and 464-«5.) The £facts which the statement ¢outo v
prove must include whatever the gtatement impoxris.,

The evidence given by the witness FPlowers vwac
therefore not only raievant but admigsible, and it teadra &

prove the state of the relations exdstiny between the azp.ic .

x

and hig wife at orxr about the timz of the gun belng dischawec:.
There can b2 no question of a wrongful exerciae of diserceus
by the judge in declining to exclude the evidence ags boing
more prejudicial than probative,

Grounds 4 and 4{a) must therefore be rejected.

Ground 6 complains of the dircetions given as o
what is called "identification evidence" in relation to the
voice. In this connzsction the learned trial judge sgaid &u.C

"The other thing I want to mention ¢o you at this
stage is usable only in a like way. That ig
the evidence given by Miss Plowers of the
telephone call that she says was made frxom ¢ho
accused’s home at about a quarter past onc on
7th May, and made by a female voice, Nowr, wou
may think, and probably will think, althougn
this again is a question of fact for you and
not for me, that at that time there were only
two people in that house, the accused and hig
wife, And a telephone call was made, and
Mizg Flowergs sald it was made by a female voice,
and the female woice sald, 'Get me the police
please - {pause} - 59 Mitchell street’, then
hung up. Well, it is a question of fact for
you, You have to be very satisfisd, to bagin
with, that Miss Flowers was right about that,
but I will deal with that a lit¢tle later on-
But suppose you were satisfied about that,
certain about it, that she was right. How ip
that admissible, how can you use that in t¢hig

B -KG,
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case? Well, gentlem=n, it can only b2

used, really, in one or both of two ways.

If vou were satisfied that Miss Flowers was
right and it was the deceased woman wio mMade
the call for the police, then that would
falsify or rebut the statemsnt made by the
accused man that it was he that made that

call, In other words, you would be entitled
to say, ‘Well, he was lying to us when he salid
he made that call, We f£ind that Migs Flower:
was right and the deceased women made that csll.
and that showed that he was lying ¢o us when h2
sald that he made the call and asked forxr the
ambulance!

Later the learned judge, when dealing with the Crown casz,
gaid, at p. 28:=-

“Then secondly, gentlemen, the Crown gay you
should €ind that the phone call ¢hat wag made
tc the Echuca exchange at a quarter past onoc,
very shortly before this killing cccurred on
7th May, was made by the deceaged woman,

Mrs. Ratten, The Crown say that is the
evidence that was given by Miss Plowers, the
telephonlst, The Crown says she 1g not an
inexperienced girl, she has been there for

gsome two o two and a half yearsy theay say
what reason or motive on earth would Miss
Flowers have to lie? The Crown says further
than that you should find that she was not
making a mistake, that she was accurate, she
had been on that board, she gaw the light
£lash, she picked up the thing, the voice gald,
‘Get me the police please, 59 Mitchell Street'.
And what the Crown 1ls saying is that she says
that was a £emale voice, Well, she was not
shaken, says the Crown. In ¢his case she
gave her evidence quite confidently and plainly.
Mr. Lazarus cross-examined hezr up hill and down
dale, but he was unable to shake her, That 1is
what the Crown say, and therefore that you
should say, ‘Well, we accept Miss Plowers as a
witnegs not only of the ¢truth, but az an
accurate and reliable witness,® Ang i€ that io
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80, then the rest of the evidenc2 in the case
shows cuite plainly, you may think - it is

a matter for you -~ but it shows quite plainly
that there were only two psople in that houge
at the relevant time, that is thz accused man
and his wife, and if it was a female voice thalt
made that call, then the Crown say it follows
like night follows day that that was the wife
ringing up for police assistance,”

Then at page 282

®The Crown say further you should £ind that
Migs Flowers® account is supported, heving regaird
to the account of that telephone conversation
that the accused gave in the witness Tox. He
said, you will recollect, that he went to the
phone and he kept repeating, ‘Get me the ambulance,
for God's sake help me, get me the ambulance', and
that he said it three times at least. maybe more.
And the Crown say, ‘Well, does not that show you
Migs Flowers could not have been all that wrong,
gays the Crown, and even if there wasz a possibiliigy
that she may have been mistaken as to the voice,
male oxr female, she could not have bzen mistaken -
this iz what the Crown gsay = as to the substance
or the nature, 80 wrong as that, as to the subgtanca
or nature of that conversation, The Crown say
it certainly was not a conversation of that kind,
and that shows that the conversation she was
giving you evidence about was not the one that the
accused man was talking sbout at any rate.’ Well,
gentlemen, now all that is a matter for you. Bul
that is the second factor that the Crown rely upon-©

Then, when dealing with the defence case, the learned judge
sald this = pages 49 to 50:-

"Pirst of all about the phone call to the Echueca
Exchange. Now who made that call? I put the
Crowvm case <o you about that, What the accused
ils saying is, 'Well look, you shnould not by any
means be satisfied to accept Miss Flewers as an
accurate witnessg.! They are not suggesting
that she is an unholy liar of course, but they gay.
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‘Here is somethirg that happens within a

very short period of time, here is a girl

who is sitting at the desk with a ¢thing in

front of her, another one unused beside her.’
Remember what Miss Bennett saild, tha more
experienced girl sitting beside hor, the

girl with the eignt years! experience, She
sald, "Oh yes, this becomes almogt auvtomatice,
this business, you do not consciougly agk
yourself is it a male voige or is it a female
voice, it ig a sort of auvtomatic thing.t

The defence say, "Obyiously in thig case Miass
Flowers is incorzett, she was wrong in saylng
that thils was a female volice, It wag an
emergency, it all happened in a very short
period and with an issue of this importance

at stake howv on earth could you say you were so
certain and satisfled that she had not made an
erTor.’ Then the defence gay, 'As a matter
of fact the accused's account 1s borne out
about this because Miss Flowers said that the
voice that she heard was urgent, hysterical

and had a high inflection,’ Now that is
exactly what Constable Bickerton gaid of the
voice that he heard on the phone when he rang
through a few minutes later. He gave exaectly
the same description, a veice that was urgent,
hysterical and high inflection, Heow that call
was obviously the accused speaking, I do nog
suppose you would have any doubt about that,

It is a matter for you, but it is pratty obvious
that when Bickerton rang back he got on to the
accused, It is a strange thing says the defence,
Wwell the description of the voice Bickerton gave
tallied with the description of the voice that
Miss Flowers gave.,' Then., says Mr, Lazarus,
and it is a matter of course for you, he says,
‘Well, goodness mz, surely if Miss Flowers wag
right and thig was Mrs. Ratten putting in a cell
for police assistance to the police station, well
surely to goodness the accused - he wasg thero,
it is only a small house, he muast have heard what
she was doing, surely to goodness he would not
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turn round and shoot hexr while the police

wera coming around, would he? That would

be a strange act of madness to indulge in,¢

And the defenecz says all that sort of
consideration should induce you not <o sct

or place any sionificance upon the telephone
call to the Exchange as being a call made by
the wife, Indeesd, says the accused, you
should be satisfied that it was a call made

by the accused man himgelf and that corroborat~)
that he was an ianocent man, it was an
accldental shooting, betause immediately 1t¢
happencd he went straight ofZ and called for
agsistance, So £ar from helping the Crown b
the way they put it, on its ¢ruec view, thoy say.
this is exactly what you would expoct an inmocent
man to do,

Then you will notlece that in the record of
interview the accused was asked about this cail,
and that is exactly what he said. He gives
the same explanation on that night o Mr. Coaltzssa
He gaid, "No, that was my call, I rang-* Cortos
put it to him, ?Your wife rang,' he sald, ‘No, =«
called, and I called for an ambulance.? And 0
defence says, well, surely that is still congicucut
with what he is saying today. And the secuocd
man at the time he was being cquestioned, he wguid
not have known then what Miss Plowers' versicn of
the thing was, could not have known what her
version of it was, and in ignorance of all ¢hat
he was not trying ¢o save himself or deny whag
she was saying, that was the answex he gave on
that night, Sc, they say. well, that phone cal’
to the Echuca Exchange is of no significance.”

The evidence which the witness gave was no¢
concarned with a matter of identification in the sense in uni-

that topic was involved in casges like R, v. Pregton 1967 V.M.

761, and R, v, Wright (No. 2) 1968 V.R. 174, and the matver

digcussed in those cases have no application, although the
language of the ground seems o have been borrvewed from thoua
cases, The congiderations the jury would need to ¢ale
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into account: in varloua situations where the identity ok
the accused vith the person involwed in the crime is soucnt
t0 ba proved, had no place in the present case. It wao o
question of whether the witneas could be relied upon iu
purporzing to be asbla to distinguish a female voice froll o
male voice in the circumstances then exiating, ™ha
considerations ¢o be taken into account by the jury in
deciding that question were not suscepiidble of much
zlaboration. They were appropriately pointed out by Che
judge in setting out the respsctive cases, particularly ox
the defence - that the operation then performed wag OO
involving automatic reactiony that the time was shoieg
that the occasion was an emergency;  that the description &
the woice given by the witness was in the same texms as tha
degcription accorded to the voice of the accused by anothar
withessy and that the course of events favoured t¢he defence
version, All this appears to have followed the submizgaionc
already made by counsel in the course of their addresses 4o
the jury, and appropriate emphasis would undoubtedly havo
been applied in thelr addresses. it is true that tho
observations were expressed as coming from counsel, but ia
effect the jury were baing told by the learned judge to ear
them in mindj and he told them that they had to be “very
satisfied" about it, “certain" about it. No complaing was
made about the lnadecuacy of the direction at the trial.
In these circumgtances it cannot be said that the attentiun
of the jury was not appropriately dravm to the matters they
would nead o have in mind. Cround 6 cannot, therefora,
be sustained.

That leaves the subject matters referred ww 4in
gnoundsloneo two and threzs, They read as followsi-

“i. That the learned trial judge chould have
directed the jury as a matter of law that thexc
was insufficient evidence to support a conviceicn:
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2. That the avideace was ingufficient to
support a conviction insofar as -

{a} the circumstances rzlicd on by
the Crowvn to prove intenl vore
equivecal g

{b) the circumstancas were only
consigtent with aceident;

{c} the circumstances were as consisteat
with accident as with a Geliberato 2.

3, The verdict was against the evidente and D

wveight of ¢the evidence, and was unreaconable ox

cannot be supported having regard to the evideaco,™

At the outset it is desirable o have in mind eh
function of an asppellate court on an app2al on the ground of
insufficient cvidence, in a case such as this dopanding uvgoan
circumstantial evidence, It was laid down by the High Coure
in Plomp v, The Oueen 110 C.L.R. 234 that the question on

appeal is not whether ths court of appeal thinks that the only
rational hypothesis opsn on t¢he evidence isg that the accuged
is guilty, but whether the court of appeal thinlits that ups:
the evidence it was opzn to the jury to be satisfied beyona
reasonable doubt of the guilt of the ac¢used, There is-

of course, too the power to set aside a verdict and convictilorn
on the ground that it is against the welght of the evidenco,

as explained in Ragpox v. The Queen, 99 C.L.R., 346,

The core of the argument is to bz found ia
paragraphs {a) (b) and (¢} of groungd 2, Thug the primary
question for this court on this part of the case is whetheg
in its opinion it was open for the jury to be sgatisfiea om
the evidence beyond reaconable doubt that the circuﬁatancoe
were not consistent only with accident or eguivecal so ag W
be as consistent with accldent as with a delibarate sct, but
that they were such that the only inference that could
rationally be drawn f£rom them was that the death of the
deceased was due to the deliberate act of the accused donc
with intent to kill and not due to aceldmmt. |
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We were given by Mr. Lazarus for the applicant
the benefit of an elaborate and detailed examination oi
the evidence in order to show that it would have been
possible to reach a conclusion consistent with zccident,
But the argument in the main took the form o0f isolating
different sections of the evidence and examining them apagt

g0 as to establish the proposition that so regarded each
section was capable of an explanation consistent with
innocence.

Even if the exercise could be regarded as succagsiuvi
within its limits, the matter cannot be looked at in thig
fragmented way. The jury were entitled to, and, indeed,

. bound to consider the whole of the circumstances. Thic
indeed was ultimately conceded, but perhaps only verbally.

However the effect of the appliecant’s case in thic
connection must be regarded as amounting to this ~ that whoa
all the circumstances which the jury could have taken ¢o be
proved are taken into account, no reasonable jury could have
reached the conclusion that the circumstances were more ¢han

1 equlvocal,

i I+ was, of course, not in.dispute that the fatal

1 . shot came from a gun held in the hand of the applicant.

: It may be conceded that the evidence to the effect

‘ that the applicant and hisg wife had maintained a reasonably
equable relationship, at all events until the day before the
death, and that it was not noticeably hosgtile thereafter -
that the wife was due to bear the applicant’s child in a wealx
OX S0} that the illieit relationship between the applicant
and Mras. Kemp did not necessarily demand a sclution in tho
form of the death of the wifes <¢hat there were found agter
the shooting indicatlions in the house, and on the weapon,
that the applicant had actually bsen engaged in cleaning
guns in the house; that the shot which killed the wife
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gtruck the side of her body and not the vital parts of the
chest or the head; ¢that the shooting took place when a
child of the parties was at home; that in his very €irst
explanation to the police the applicant contended there had
been an accident when cleaning the gun, and that this was
repeated later that day in his interview with the police and
repeated in evidence in the witness box - all thisg,

combined with the possibility of Miss Flowers making a mistake
about the voice on the telephone, afforded some support for
the view that the killing was an innocent one,

But these only constitute part of the circumstances
which the jury could have found to exist. They could have
taken others into account.

The gun was loaded. It had been unloaded when
returned to the control of the applicant in February ox March,
and at some point of time shortly thereafier, early in March,
when there was a discussion between Kemp and the applicant.,
There was nothing to suggest that the gun had been undex
anyone else's control, and the suggestion that it might have
been loaded by the applicant’s children recelved no suppore
£rom him, He had no suggestion to make as to who, other
than himself, could have loaded the gun, The cartridges
found in it were similar in make and appegarance to those
found in his canoe. According to the evidence of the
gunsmith, who was familiar with the gun, and according o
the evidence of a police ballistic expert who had tested 1¢,
although its locking device was loose 80 as o present scma
danger to the firer., it could not be discharged by dropping
1t or knocking it, It was clearly opzn to the jury to
find , {(and this was not contested) that the gun was
discharged by a pull of the trigger. The evidence was thag
it required a pull of 3 lbs, on the trigger for the right

hand barrel where the misfire took place. and a pull of 7 lbg.
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on the trigger for the left hand barrel, where the shof
wag fired, There was no circumstance related by the
applicant to account for the triggers being pulled other tha..
that they were pulled by hils hand, The jury were cleagly
entitled to find, {and thils again was not¢ contested) thag it
was his hand that used the necessary force to release theo
triggers. in addition, the safety catch was elther of%
or it was forced by pressure additional to that ordinarily
required to release the trigger. If the triggers were
pulled one after the other, the imnference that the second
pulling was deliberate would be clearly open, notwithstanding
the applicant®s afterthought that he had remambered a click
which might have accounted for the misfire. If tha
triggers were pulled simultaneously, involving either «wo
fingers or two distinct movemenis with one finger, the
inference thatz the effort involved would be the product of a
consciops and deliberate act was at least clearly opzn.
The occurrence of a discharge from the gun so az to kill <he
wife in an accidental manner would appear to ragquire a
combination of firstly the fortuitous loading of the gun £rom
some unexplained source, secondly, the undesigned pulling ol
both triggere by the applicant’s hand in some unexplained
way, and thirdly the alignment of the barrel of the qun at
that particular moment of time with the body of the victim.
The jury were entitled to consider whether this concatenation
of circumstances was a likely one, or whether, on the other
hand, the loaded condition of the gun, its discharge by the
hand of the applicant, and the striking of his wife by tho
shot,; when consldered in the light of other circumstances
related in the evidence, di8 not reasonably compal the
conclusion that it was not an accident.

Among the other circumstances they were invited ¢o

take into account were those related in the evidence ag 2
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parported to obserwve, and that, 1f maxrriage were out of
the question, it presentad him at all events with ¢ths
prospect of having to carry the burden of supporting a
degerted wife., In this gituation, and its incidenca,
the jury might reasconably have found a metive vaich might
have appealed to the applicant for the killing of his wiic,
whether or not it might have appealed as a solution of the
problem o other minds,

The jury were also entitled to regard the cleaniag
of the guns in the kitchen at that time on a working day, &rd
without any precautions being taken to chechk them for louding
by a person a3 experienced with firearms ag the applilcant was.
as placing some colour on the clrceumstances, And espegcially
they vere entitled, if they chose, to accept the evidcnee of
the telephone operator as reliable, and to f£ind the c¢all o
have been made by the wife by way of an appeal ifor protection
from some threat by the applicant. They wera entitled <o
draw the inference from the angle of the wound, showing a
course of 45 degrees downwards, that the applicant was noQ
relating the true story when he described the attitude of
himgelf standing at the sink with the gun at% his hip, and
that of his wife standing in an upright position at the gael,
They were entcitled, if they chose, to attach some signiflGaner
o the false denials made by the accused o the polics ag W
the existence of any comnectlion between his illicit
activitiaeg and hils domestic situation.

Congidering all these matters it was in our opiniclL
open to the jury to be satisfied on the evidence beyord
reascnable doubt. notwithstanding the expianationg put
forward by the applicant that the circumgtances were not
consistent only with innocence or consistent aqually wigh

accident as with intent, but were such that the only inforensc
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that could reazonably b draun was that 14 wag a deliberate

st of the applicant that caused his wife'g d2ath, ané that
hiz intention was wo kiil her, That bzing so, the
Jearned trial judge was under no Guiy to with@raw the case
£from tne jury when he was ashked wo do so0, In fact he refuct
to do 8O- in our opinion the verdict was net unmppdoricd
by the evidenca, nor was it unreasonsbla,

We were urged to say that the verdict was ecalinsh,
the waeight of the evidence, and unsatisizctory Sor thate
reason, and that the conviction was therefore ursafle, hEter
a mos¢ careful consideration of the evidence we are unable €O
comne to any such conclusion,

This is simply a case where it was the function of
whe jury to assess ¢the value and significance of circumgtantica
avidanece . In our opinion their verdiet wag arrived at 922
evidence and in circumgtances which de not ensble it ©o ha
challenged, Grounds 1, 2 and 3 must therefore be rejericd.

For these reasona the application for leave o
app=al will be dismisszed,

The order of the court is that the applicaticn for

leave to appeal 1s dlgmissed,
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